ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 25, 2006
01: 07 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Ral ph Samuel s, Co-Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representative Kurt O son
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Harry Crawford

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Representative JimElkins (excused)
Representative Mary Kapsner

COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NE( S)

Conmi ssi oner, Departnent of Natural Resources

M chael Menge — Juneau
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Big Gane Commercial Services Board

Paul Johnson — Elfin Cove

Ted Spraker - Sol dot na

Betty Jo Schmitz — North Pole
Colin Brown - Gal ena

Ral ph Anderson - Dillingham
Roy Ashenfelter - None

Ri chard Rohrer - Kodi ak

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to report

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- January 25, 2006



M CHAEL MENGE, Commi ssi oner

Departnent of Natural Resources

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appoi nt ee.

PAUL JOHNSON, Chair

Big Gane Commerci al Services Board

El fin Cove, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appoi nt ee.

TED SPRAKER, Appoi nt ee

to the Big Game Commercial Services Board
Sol dot na, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appoi nt ee.

BETTY JO SCHM TZ, Appoi nt ee

to the Big Game Commercial Services Board
North Pol e, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appoi nt ee.

COLI N BROWN, Appoi ntee

to the Big Game Commercial Services Board
Gal ena, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appoi nt ee.

RALPH ANDERSON, Appoi nt ee

to the Big Gane Commercial Services Board
Di|li ngham Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appoi nt ee.

ROY ASHENFELTER, Appoi ntee

to the Big Ganme Commercial Services Board
Nonme, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appoi nt ee.

Rl CHARD ROHRER, Appoi nt ee

to the Big Game Commercial Services Board
Kodi ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appoi nt ee.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
COCHAIR RALPH SAMJELS called the House Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:07:43 PM Representatives
Sanmuel s, Gatto, Crawford and Seaton were present at the call to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -2- January 25, 2006



order. Representatives LeDoux, Ranras and O son arrived while
the neeting was in progress. Representative Elkins was excused.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N S)

Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Natural Resources

CO- CHAIR SAMUELS announced that the first order of business
would be the continuation of +the confirmation hearing for
M chael Menge for Comm ssioner of the Departnent of Natural
Resources (DNR).

M CHAEL MENGE, Conm ssioner Appointee, Departnent of Natural
Resources, said he is willing to answer questions.

REPRESENTATIVE CRAWFORD referred to  Comm ssioner Menge' s
statenent blam ng the Japanese for the dem se of the original
gasline project, but what kept that project from going ahead was
that producers wouldn't nmake a commtnent to put gas into the
mar ket pl ace.

COWM SSI ONER MENGE said he used the Japanese to enphasize the
point that they were contenplating signing a contract, and there
was a euphoria anobngst those involved after "a very |engthy
permtting process" and "a contentious exercise wth the Federal
Energy Regulatory Conmission (FERC)." He said, "The Japanese
were contenplating signing a sales agreenent or purchase
agreenent, and they didn't do it," and he didn't nmean to inply
that it was their fault. He said the fault was the economc
picture. He said he was "not privy to Yukon Pacific's work with
the oil conpanies as it related to sales contracts.” He said no
one was to blane; the value of the gas was so low that it would
not support the cost of the infrastructure.

REPRESENTATIVE CRAWORD said there were three conpeting
proposals for the gasline last year, and it seens that the
adm nistration has dropped two in favor of the producer's

proposal. "Wuldn't it be better for Alaska to have conpeting
proposal s?" he asked. He noted Huey Long and his fight wth
Standard Ol in the 1920s between producer-owned pipelines and
i ndependent ones. "Wuldn't it be better for us to have an

i ndependent - owned pipeline where the producers didn't control
t he neans of transportation?”

COWM SSI ONER MENGE said things have changed and now there is

FERC who stands guard over the operations and rate setting of
any interstate pipeline. He said FERC wll deal wth the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- January 25, 2006



probl ens of excess influence, and he has a great deal of faith
in that process. He added that there are firewalls of
significant magnitude and an arny of |awers |ooking for a crack
in that wall. The consequences of violating that relationship
are dire, he noted. That is just the federal governnent, there
is also the state watchdogs, and he told the commttee that DNR
will look at that issue very carefully to serve Alaska's
interests.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked what Comm ssioner Menge would say
to the question of Alaska's gas being stranded under today's
econonics. He said econom c nodels have said that an Al aska gas
pi peline project is econom ¢ under al nost any scenari o.

COM SSIONER MENGE said that is an interesting question, and
beware of a sinple answer. Looked at in isolation, Al aska' s gas
may be considered as such, but there's over 6,000 [trillion
cubic feet] of stranded gas around the world, "and Al aska
conpetes with each one of those nolecules. You cannot do an
econom c analysis that sinply assunes that this is the best
project in the world."” He said the project has to be conpared to
ot her projects before doing an econom c analysis. Keep it in the
context of the world gas supply and conpetition, he stated.

1:17: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCORD said if Alaska's project nakes nore
dollars per cubic foot than another project, but the other
project has the ability to say, "Use it or lose it," then, "do
we have to look at that as a factor, or shouldn't we just be
| ooki ng at whether or not our project is profitable?"

COWM SSI ONER MENCE said the Stranded Gas Act "told us" to put
together a business deal. "As we proceed forward we wll knit
all of these things into what we believe is a reasonable offer.
But the governor said many tines it is not an offer at any

price. W wll not devalue the gas to conpensate for other
alternatives. W will put together a deal that mnakes econom c
sense for Alaska and for the conpanies.” He said the state can
nove into a litigation nmode if it is not successful. "W can
entertain and proceed into covenants-to-produce, duty-to-

devel op, the panoply of options available to us wunder a
litigation scenario, so we always have that option."

1:19: 53 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- January 25, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if Alaska's definition of stranded
gas applies to other countries, and if there is a glut of it.

COWMM SSI ONER MENGE sai d he has troubl e understandi ng the neaning
of stranded gas. The gas that is not being produced is conpeting
with all other gas that is not being produced, and the world is
awash in that gas, but it is being conpeted for in all the
grow ng economes in the world. Each growh center creates
demand, he said, and as each new project cones on, sone gas
becomes unstranded. He said, "Stranded or unstranded is just a
function of whether you have acconplished the marketability of
the product." There is a trenmendous anmount of stranded gas, but
there is a growing nmarket for it, he stated. "It is our job to
try to strike the balance in a way to commercialize our gas in
recognition of the growing value and to put it into production
in a way that protects us over the long term"”

1:22: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said if gas is at tidewater far from
market, it will be liquefied and noved, and he asked if there
was a worldw de glut of that kind of gas.

1: 23: 07 PM

COM SSI ONER MENGE said that is a fair statement right now, but
he conti nued:

If you look 48 hours from now, we wll have enhanced
the capacity to deliver that product from tidewater—
liquefying it, shipping it, degassing it, putting it
into the gas system W talk about an hourglass, it's
ti pping, and right now liquefied natural gas [LNG is
at a marked di sadvantage from any gas that can be put
in the pipeline. It is nuch nore efficient just to
pipeline it, and the distribution systens are in
pl ace, wuse existing infrastructure. But any casual
perusal of the trade journals across the country, you
Wil | see one proposal after anot her for t he
comercialization of LNG and all of that activity is
mani festing itself in relaxed FERC rules for siting
[ i ndeci pherable] conpanies are investing billions of
dollars in receiving termnals and ability to take the
liquefied natural gas and nake it nore available on a
demand basi s.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -5- January 25, 2006



COWM SSI ONER MENGE said a trenendous amount of new technology is
focused on making LNG nore commercial. He said the state is in a
race, and there is no question that a pipeline quality gas that
Al aska can deliver can conpete economcally with all the LNG in

the world. He said that advantage will go on for at |east five
years, but in 10 to 20 years the market will equalize across the
gl obe. "At sone point, the cost of LNG the infrastructure to
develop LNG we'll be in a position to conpete successfully with

a regul ar pipeline."
1:25: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that nust be the reason to sel
gaseous gas today.

COM SSIONER MENGE said it is a good reason to nove forward
qui ckly in the devel opnment of a pipeline, "so that you can carve
out your portion of the market, establish your deliverability,
establish your custoners and proceed forward. Once the pipeline
is in place nothing will be able to conpete for it as far as
efficiency."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if gas is considered stranded just
based on its profitability to a conpany, so if a conpany has
another field where its gas was nore profitable, could the
conpany call the less profitable field stranded?

1: 26: 13 PM

COWM SSI ONER MENGE said the economic viability of gas has many
vari ables: the price the gas is sold for and the cost of getting
it to market. "The gas that can be delivered to the burner tip
for the least price is the gas that will be devel oped.”

1: 28: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said Alaska is sitting in the position of
being told that our gas is stranded if a conmpany can sell gas
nore profitably el sewhere, so all the cards are in the conpany's
deck if they have other fields in the world.

COWM SSI ONER MENGE said, "W have to deal wth a punch |ist of
cold hard realities,” and when being negotiated, |ease terns
were not set and not based on production. "There is a duty to
develop within the |eases, which we, at sone point in tine, my
choose to exercise, but until we do that, until we follow that
[itigation pathway, because the value of the commodity in place

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- January 25, 2006



is neasured in the hundreds of billions of dollars, so it is a
very high stakes poker ganme that we are talking about. Until we
have to deal with the reality of the leases as currently
witten, so if there is another product sonewhere that can be
delivered cheaper, given the |legal framework that we are working
under, then that wll be produced first. [If we choose to
exerci se our options, which we have, we can always do that." He
added that the governor said he is going to put together a
business deal first, and if it doesn't happen, then other
alternatives will be exercised.

1: 30: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the comm ssioner would agree to a
contract that would not |imt Al aska's available litigation
strat egi es.

COMW SSIONER MENGE said he believes in a use-it-or-lose-it
provision. He would generally favor that conponent in any kind
of contract, "but it 1is always neasured in light of the
foundation of fact that we have to deal with." On the Beaufort
Sea |l ease sale "we" shortened the lease ternms in the core area
fromseven to five years for that reason, he said.

1: 32: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked, "Then you wouldn't favor contract
provisions that would limt our litigation strategies that we
have available to us now if production didn't go forward?"

COMM SSI ONER MENGE said, "W have a responsibility as custodi ans
of the resource to derive the maxi mum benefit possible for the
state, and we should be ever mndful of making sure that those
resources can be developed in the nost expeditious fashion, and
shoul d always pay a great deal of attention to any contract or
any lease that we get into and take those issues into
consi deration. "

1: 32: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how the comm ssioner thinks the soi
and water conservation districts are functioning and if he
supports their continuation.

COW SSI ONER MENGE said he has always been an advocate of soil

and water conservation districts. He said these organizations
can be as good or bad as the participants, and they can be

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- January 25, 2006



m schi evous or beneficial. He added that he will spend quite a
bit of tinme |ooking at them

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if he thinks they are working well.
1:34:42 PM

COWM SSI ONER MENCE said his special assistant will report on it.
He said he does not want to prejudge what is going on.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said they have been valuable in his
cormunity. He noted that the comm ssioner spoke of state and
federal partnerships, but not about I|ocal involvenent. He said
that the Alaska Coastal Zone Managenent Programs recent
revisions have had feedback that |local involvenent is very
difficult. Representative Seaton said that the incorporation of
enforceable policies into municipal ordinances neans that those
policies are no longer dealt with in the consistency review He
said developers will need to go to the nunicipalities, which
goes agai nst Al aska's streanlining novenent.

1: 36: 59 PM

COWM SSI ONER MENGE said he has been involved with coordination
his whole career. He said there is always a bal ance between the
| ocal conmunity's influence and the statewide issue. He said it
is a natural and healthy tension, and the community deserves to
have its influence, but to what extent, and when does it cross a
line? He said before the revisions there was a question "as to
the reach that [community influence] occurred.” He said he is
the |oudest advocate of comunity participation and he is
watching the new policies closely. It wll all depend on the
reach of that comunity influence whether it is a good or
gquestionable thing, "and we're going to have to just test that
as we go." He said the Kensington mne in Juneau has to go
through a rigorous nunicipal permtting process, and "we wll
incorporate that into our large project process, so that all
those voices work together.”™ He said he doesn't see anything
wong in the systemthat is evolving. "It gives everyone a voice
in the process," he said.

1:39:45 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if DNR could purchase agricultura

rights or purchase agricultural land in the Matanuska-Susitna
area because it is being dinmnished by subdivisions.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- January 25, 2006



1: 40: 42 PM

COM SSIONER MENGE said zoning regulations are a draconian
approach to preserve agricultural |ands, and Alaskans are
reluctant to engage in zoning. He said it is difficult to deny
old farmers the significant gain they can get from subdividing
their land. He said he would like to strike a balance in order
to preserve agricultural land by converting additional |[|ands
into agricultural |ands. He added that once a parking |ot goes

over a carrot field, it will never be a carrot field again. He
said he can facilitate "what we have and nake sure we grow the
agricultural base to the extent that we can." He suggested
encouragi ng new ways to market farm products, but that "farners
and ranchers are rugged individuals and do not Ilike to
organi ze." He said he will help them help thensel ves.

1:44: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said the Departnment of Transportation &
Public Facilities follows the no-net-loss of wetlands policy,
and he asked if a simlar policy would work for agricultural
| and.

COWMM SSI ONER MENCE said that could be legislated, but at |east a
third of his hair |oss has been fighting the concept of no-net-
| oss of wetlands. He said it will be difficult to do "because of
the human conponents we have to deal wth." He said the
covenants placed on | ands would be very specific.

1:47:10 PM

CO CHAI R SAMUJELS asked himto discuss subsi stence.

1:47:58 PM

COWM SSI ONER MENGE sai d subsistence is a difficult issue and a
reasonabl e sol ution has not been found. He said he has not spent
time thinking about DNR's role in that issue. He said he wll
work on the issues before him and not subsistence.

1:48: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the commissioner spoke of Al aska
getting a fair share for its resources, and he said the 160th or

about 0.6 percent tax on mning on the extracted value of $1.6
billion doesn't conpare well with the taxation of oil and fish.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -9- January 25, 2006



1:49: 48 PM

COM SSIONER MENGE said he strongly believes that Al aska
deserves a fair share, and mning should be treated the sane as
ot her resources. He said nost of it occurs on federal |and, and
"I think we would |ook at the value of the commodity, the cost
associated with developing it, and once we had done those
econonm ¢ analyses, then I would be in a position to answer your
question."” He added, "W should not rush into this quickly." He
said to |look at what conpanies are investing verses what they
are making. Wat seens |like a sinple solution may not be, he
said, and "the tragedy of wunattended consequences goes hand in
hand with making rash decisions on things that are economcally
conplex." He said he wll work wth Representative Seaton to
determne what is fair, and he will support what is fair.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if analysis of profitability should
be considered with fisheries. He said Al aska has a mnimum t hree
percent ex-vessel value tax and a five percent tax on the
floati ng processors. The fishing industry has been in a tailspin
for years, and net profits are near zero, and any fisherman
woul d love to pay taxes based on net profits as mning conpanies
do. "So are you saying that sane structure of |ooking at cost
versus profits should be used for all our resources or should
that be just reserved for m nes?" he asked.

COM SSIONER MENGE said the "fishing industry 1is a very
conplicated issue."” He said he believes "that any of the state's
resources should be subjected to that kind of an in-depth
anal ytical analysis" before determning the state's share.

1:54: 16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if Comm ssioner Menge woul d support
agricultural |easeholders' ability to pay fair market value for
their |eased property, taking the land out of the agricultura
desi gnati on

COWM SSI ONER MENGE said he needs to understand it nore. He said
| ease ternms and conditions define the value of the lease, and it
m ght not be unreasonable for the state to clear the |and and
then lease it. The state mght l|lease raw |land and require the
farmer to clear the land, "at which point they would have a
significant investnent in that |ease and would also justly be
entitled to conpensation for their investnent."

1:55: 56 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 10- January 25, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON repeated his question.

COWM SSI ONER MENGE said he would not be against any proposal
like that, but he would want to make sure the state's interests
are consi der ed.

1: 56: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said there is warnmer and warner weat her,
and in Homer the lack of firefighting equi pnment al nbst created a
tragedy | ast year.

COWMM SSI ONER MENGE said climate has changed and he hopes it is a
"blip on the radar screen,” but he won't make that assunption
and supports changes. He said there are financial inplications
but human |ives supersede those.

1: 58: 40 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to advance the nane of M chael Menge
as comm ssioner of DNR to the joint session for consideration.

Hearing no objection, it was so ordered.

The commttee took an at-ease from 1:59: 04 PMto 2:04:43 PM

Big Gane Conmercial Services Board

CO-CHAIR SAMUELS announced that the final order of business
woul d be confirmation hearings for seven appointees to the Big
Gane Commerci al Services Board.

PAUL JOHNSON, Appointee and Chair of the Big Gane Conmmerci al
Services Board, said a guide board was fornmed in the early 1970s
and was sunset in 1995 until last year. He said the new board is
conposed of nine nenbers represented by: two private |and-
hol ders, one Board of Gane nenber, two public nenbers, two
transporters, and two big ganme guides. The board is not yet
full, but there is a wonderful set of people now on the board,
he said. He told the commttee that he has been a guide for 30
years, and now also owns a |odge. He sat through the origina
task force that created the board, and he was the chair of the
first board. He said the new board had its first neeting in
Decenber .

VR. JOHNSON said the board duties are to pronote the
professionalism of big ganme guides and transporters through

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- January 25, 2006



contracts, a code of ethics and a testing program for guides
Commttees were fornmed during the first neeting. The testing
program is on hold until Decenber because the board needs tine
to "pull things together."

2:09:21 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the make up of the board.
2:10: 10 PM

MR. JOHNSON |isted the seven appointees and their positions on
t he board.

CO CHAI R SAMUJELS said nost of the people are on I|ine.
2:11:29 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked why the board was all owed to sunset.

MR. JOHNSON said there are different opinions, and noted that
re-instatenent passed the |egislative House unani nously, but one
committee chair in the Senate held it so it couldn't go to a
senate vote. "W had the votes in the Senate; there was no
guestion,"” he stated.

2:12: 37 PM

CO CHAIR SAMIJELS said a recent audit |ooked at the big gane
gui di ng busi ness as a whol e and suggested re-creating the board.

2:13:26 PM

MR. JOHNSON said the prior comrercial service board had a very
cl ean audit.

TED SPRAKER, Appointee, Soldotna, said he is from Womng and
has been in Alaska for 33 years. He worked as a wldlife
biologist for the Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane and was
appointed to the Alaska Board of Gane once he retired. He said
the guiding industry has suffered from not having the guide
board. The ent husiasm he has already seen on the new board shows
himthat it will nake sonme needed changes including the creation
of a code of ethics. He said he is on the transporter commttee.

2:17:02 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- January 25, 2006



BETTY JO SCHM TZ, Appointee, North Pole, said she worked as a
m ssionary in sone villages and later worked as a biological
technician for the United States Fish and WIldlife Service
(USFWs). She currently hone-schools her children and is an
instructor and team nenber of the Becomng an Qutdoors Wnan
program She is not a guide but she enjoys hunting and being
outdoors. She is on the examnation commttee to ensure guides
will be truly professional.

2:19: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he appreciates the gender diversity,
and hopes that the governor will consider wonmen for the fina
two appoi nt nent s.

2:19: 36 PM

COLIN BROMWN, Appointee, Galena, said he spent time in Anchorage
as a commercial pilot and then noved to Galena to be an air taxi
pilot. He worked for the USFW5 as a pilot, and he trapped with
dog teans. He opened his own air service about eight years ago
and becane concer ned about t he | ack of ethics and
professionalism in the transporter industry. He was excited by
the renewing of the big gane board and wants to bring ethics and
pr of essional i sm back into the industry.

2:22:20 PM

RALPH ANDERSON, Appointee, Dillingham said he is an Al aska
Native and has degrees in English and political science. He said
he worked 20 years in Barrow, and noved back to Dillingham ei ght
years ago. Sport hunting and fishing are inportant to the
econony of Al aska, especially in rural Al aska, he said. I|ncone
from the guiding and transporting industry has been helpful;
however, there are conplaints about trespassing, but "we" are
taking "really good steps to address those.”" He stated that it
is inportant to build cooperative relationships. He is the chair
of the ethics commttee, which nade considerable progress at the
| ast neeti ng.

ROY ASHENFELTER, Appointee, Nome, said he is the Vice Chair of
the Western Arctic Caribou Herd Wrking Goup. He is from None
and attended college in Anchorage. He holds one of the public
seats on the Big Gane Commercial Services Board and is chair of
the transporter commttee. He nentioned issues in the Nenana
region.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 13- January 25, 2006



2:27:35 PM

Rl CHARD RCHRER, Appoi ntee, Kodiak, said he grew up on a farm and
in a hunting famly and now is a naster guide and holds one of
the guide seats on the board. He said his wldlife viewng,
sport fishing and hunting guide business on federal land in
Kodi ak provides his primary living. He said it was his turn to
serve on the board and he is chair of the contract conmmittee. He
hopes to have, at the next neeting, proposed regulations so

operators will be nore accountable for the services they offer
for the noney they are paid. This includes how client noney is
handl ed, including refunds on deposits in the case of

cancel | ati ons, he added.
2:30: 53 PM

CO CHAI R SAMUELS thanked all nenbers and especially the public
nmenbers.

2:31: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to advance the nanmes of Paul
Johnson, Ted Spraker, Betty Jo Schmtz, Colin Brown, Ralph
Anderson, Roy Ashenfelter and Richard Rohrer, appointees to the
Big Gane Commercial Services Board, to the joint session for
consi deration. Hearing no objection, it was so ordered.

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
Resources Standing Comm ttee neeting was adjourned at 2:32 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- January 25, 2006



